
Please arrive at 6:30 p.m. 

For the presentation  

of the Myers Scholarship 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bloomfield Township Public Library 
Board of Trustees 

 
Library Board Meeting 

August 21, 2018 
7:00 p.m. 

John Rumsey Board Room 
 

Trustees: 
libraryboard@btpl.org 

 
Eli Greenbaum, President 

Judy Lindstrom, Vice President 
Tom Deska, Secretary 

Sandra Edwards 
Grant Gerhart 
Joan Luksik 

 
 
 

Director: 
muellerc@btpl.org 

Carol Mueller 
 

All meetings are open to the public.   
We invite you to attend a meeting or watch it online at www.btpl.org 

 

 

 
1099 Lone Pine Road, Bloomfield Township, MI 48302  248.642.5800 

mailto:libraryboard@btpl.org
mailto:muellerc@btpl.org
http://www.btpl.org/


    BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEE MEETING 

 
LIBRARY BOARD INFORMATION PACKETS 

 
List of Contents 

 
Items included in pre-board delivery for the REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULED  

For Tuesday, August 21, 2018    
 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

# NUMBERED ITEMS        DATE DELIVERED 
 

1 Agenda          8/16/2018 
2a Request to remove items from the Consent Agenda for Discussion   8/16/2018 
2b Motion to approve the order of items for the regular and consent agendas  8/16/2018 
5 Motion to approve remaining Consent Agenda items 6-8d    8/16/2018 
6 Regular Board Meeting Minutes of 6/19/18      8/16/2018 
6a Special Library Board Meeting Minutes      8/16/15 
7a Cash Disbursements         8/16/2018 
7b Revenues/Expenditures Budget Report      8/16/2018 
7c Energy Report          8/16/2018 
8a President’s Report– no report           
8b Director’s Report         8/16/2018 
8c Art Committee –no report           
8c Bloomfield Township Liaison – no report  
8c Building, Grounds, Landscaping, Interiors Committee – no report     
8c Cranbrook –no report   
8c Development Committee – 8/2/2018       8/16/2018  
8c Finance Committee – no report  
8c Friends of the Library Liaison – no report 
8c Jeanette P. Myers Scholarship Committee – no report      
8c Investment Committee – no report        
8c Personnel Committee – no report       
8c Policy Committee  
11a      Library Renovations Bid Award       8/16/2018     
11b      Proposed 2019 Holiday Calendar        8/16/2018     
13 Motion to approve any items removed from the Consent Agenda   8/16/2018 
 
 
 
 UNNUMBERED ITEMS       DATE DELIVERED 

Request for Proposals for Library Telephone System    8/16/2018 
Strategic Plan Update         8/16/2018 
Space Needs and Wayfinding Update      8/16/2018 

 Calendar          8/16/2018 
 
   



 AGENDA 
BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Tuesday, August 21, 2018 

Regular Board Meeting 
7:00 P.M. 

*Brief ceremony to award Myers Scholarship at 6:30 p.m.  
*Public Budget Hearing at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

1. Call to order of regular meeting 
2a. Request to remove items from the Consent Agenda for Discussion 
2b. MOTION to approve the order of items for the Regular and Consent Agendas 
3. President’s Verbal Report 
4. Director’s Verbal Report 
5. MOTION to approve the remaining Consent Agenda items 6-8d 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.    Call to the public, communications 
10.  Unfinished Business 
11.  New Business 

a. Library Renovations Bid Award 

b. Proposed 2019 Holiday Calendar 

12.  Discussion of items removed from the Consent Agenda  
13.  MOTION to approve any items removed from the Consent Agenda 
14.  Other 
15.  Next scheduled meeting:  Thursday, September 20, 2018 
16.  Adjournment 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS #1-5  

 

 

6.  Regular Board meeting minutes of July 17, 2018 
6a. Special Library Board meeting minutes of August 9, 2018 
        
7.  Budget 
 a. Cash Disbursements 
 b. Monthly Revenues & Expenditures 
 c. Energy Report 
 
8.  Written Reports: 

a. President:    *Eli Greenbaum 
b. Director:    *Carol Mueller 
c. Committee:     *Art Committee Ad Hoc 

     *Bloomfield Township Liaison 
     *Building, Grounds, Landscaping, Interiors 
     * Cranbrook 
     * Development 
     * Finance 
     * Friends of the Library Liaison 
     * Investment 
     * Jeanette P. Myers Scholarship Selection 
     * Personnel 
     * Policy    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS #6-8d 
Items removed will be discussed under Item #12 

 
 

 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

#9-17 



                                                                     
                     

2a 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

REQUEST TO REMOVE ITEMS FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA  
FOR DISCUSSION 

 
 
 
 

I REQUEST THAT ITEM (S): 
 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 
________________________________ 
 

 
BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION 
DURING REGULAR AGENDA ITEM 12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If amended, CONSENT AGENDA items will be moved to REGULAR AGENDABITEM #12 

for discussion and REGULAR AGENDABITEM #13 for approval. 

 
 
 



                                                                     

                    2b 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE ORDER OF ITEMS FOR THE REGULAR 
AND CONSENT AGENDAS 

 
 
 
 

OPTION - NO AMENDMENT NEEDED: 
I move to approve the order of items as listed on the REGULAR and CONSENT 
AGENDAS as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
OPTION - AMENDMENT TO AGENDA: 

I move to approve the order of items as listed on the AGENDAS, with the following 
items to be moved from  

 
 the REGULAR AGENDA as follows: 

 
 
 
 

 the CONSENT AGENDA as follows:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
If amended, CONSENT AGENDA items will be moved to REGULAR AGENDA ITEM #12 
for discussion and REGULAR AGENDA ITEM #13 for approval. 
 
 
 

 
 



 

5 
 
 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS MOTION 
 
 

I move to approve the remaining items on the consent agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 



         MINUTES OF THE BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
 
 Bloomfield Township Public Library 
 Oakland County, Michigan 

 Tuesday, July 17, 2018 

 
At 7:00 p.m. the Regular Meeting of the Bloomfield Township Public Library Board of Trustees 
was called to order by President Eli Greenbaum.  
  

Present:          Trustees: Tom Deska, Sandra Edwards, Grant Gerhart, Eli Greenbaum, 
and Judy Lindstrom 

 

Administration: Library Director Carol Mueller, Assistant Director Tera Moon, 
Administrative Assistant Linden Godlove,  
 

Guests:  None 

  

Upon discussion, a motion was made by Judy Lindstrom, seconded by Tom Deska TO 

APPROVE THE ORDER OF ITEMS FOR THE REGULAR AND CONSENT AGENDAS. 

 
A vote was taken for approval of the motion. 
Ayes: Deska, Edwards, Gerhart, Greenbaum, and Lindstrom 
Nays: None 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

President’s Verbal Report:  
Director Mueller announced that tonight there would be a guest Ann Williams, Adult Services 
Department Head, whose last day of work before retirement is tomorrow. Her official 
retirement date is July 31, 2018. Ann Williams has worked at the Library for almost 30 years 
and has done many wonderful things, among which was initiating the Writer’s Rendezvous 
group over 20 years ago. She was quite proud of the group’s published anthology that came 
out recently.  
 
President Eli Greenbaum read and presented a Library Board resolution to retiring Adult 
Services Department Head Ann Williams, recognizing her for her many years of service.  
 
 

Director’s Verbal Report: 
 
There has been a lot going on at this Library this summer, with some wonderful concerts, 
thanks to the Friends who gave generous contributions so that the Library could have some 
extra special entertainment this year. Tonight, the Wild Swan Theater is presenting 
“Marketplace Stories from the Arab World.” Director Mueller also reported about other events 
coming up this week at the Library. Tuesday, August 21 at 1 p.m. Detroit born author Steve 

6 



Hamilton is coming, and he is releasing a new novel, Dead Man Running, that day. Volunteer 
readers are still needed for the Read-a-Thon on Saturday, September 8, for A Wrinkle in Time. 
The Friends had a book sale this past Saturday and Sunday and earned $4,404.00, which is 
the highest amount they have generated in a long time.  
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA: 
Call to the Public: none present 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
No unfinished business.  

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
11a Annual Report 
Director Mueller remarked on how much she enjoys looking back at the wonderful 
accomplishments of the previous year. FY 2017/2018 was a very full year once again. 
Included in the annual report is just a sampling of events, programs and accomplishments of 
the 2017/2018 fiscal year.  
 
Director Mueller remains ever grateful to the Library Board for their unwavering support, to the 
Friends for their generosity that helps this Library be so great and to the amazing library staff 
that make it all happen. 
 
 
The Library FY 2017/2018 Annual Report will be posted on the Library website.  The complete 
Annual Report notebook is also available to browse.  This notebook contains not only the 
library-wide report, but reports submitted by the Assistant Director, Finance Coordinator, 
Volunteer Coordinator, and Department Heads, plus photos, media coverage, and much more. 
It is a wonderful snapshot of a year in the life of Bloomfield Township Public Library and will be 
kept in the Library Archives in perpetuity. 
 
Many thanks to Assistant Director Tera Moon for preparing this report and to all Library 
Department Heads for submitting their summaries of the year’s activities in their respective 
departments.   
 

Upon discussion, a motion was made by Tom Deska, seconded by Sandra Edwards  TO 

ACCEPT THE LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT REPORT FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018. 
 
A vote was taken for approval of the motion. 
Ayes: Deska, Edwards, Gerhart, Greenbaum, and Lindstrom 
Nays: None 

 

DISCUSSION OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 
No items removed 
 

OTHER:  

 
The Welcome Desk Panel samples were shared to review. The September Library Board 



meeting is moved to Thursday, September 20. The Library’s audit will be presented at this 
meeting.   
 

Upon discussion, a motion was made by Eli Greenbaum, seconded by Judy Lindstrom TO 

RESCHEDULE THE SEPTEMBER BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING TO THURSDAY, 

SEPTEMBER 20. 
 
  
Judy Lindstrom inquired about the 31,000 books that are removed from the collection. Director 
Mueller shared that some copies are sold and some are recycled, because they are in poor 
condition. The Friends donate some books to other organizations. The numbers will be greatly 
different in the current fiscal year, as the library staff is weeding heavily in anticipation of the 
move of the media items.  
 
Grant Gerhart remarked on the low prices at the Used Equipment sale. Director Mueller 
reported that many of the items were old and were mostly good for scrap. The Library works to 
get all of the use possible out of their equipment before it is set aside for the sale. 
 
At 7:34 p.m. President Eli Greenbaum adjourned the meeting. The next Board Meeting will be 
Tuesday, August 21 at 7 p.m. The presentation of the Myers Scholarship will be at 6:30 p.m. 
and the Public Budget hearing at 7:00 p.m.  
 
         Submitted by: 

                                                                                      
         Tom Deska, Secretary 
 
 
 
 



      

 

 

 

 MINUTES OF THE BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 Bloomfield Township Public Library 
 Oakland County, Michigan 

 Thursday, August 9, 2018 

 
The special meeting of the Bloomfield Township Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the 
Library on Thursday, August 9.  The meeting was called to order by Vice-President Judy Lindstrom 
at 11:00 a.m. 
   

Present:          Trustees: Tom Deska, Sandra Edwards, Judy Lindstrom, and Joan Luksik  
 

Administration: Library Director, Carol Mueller; Assistant Director, Tera Moon; Finance 
Coordinator, Sandi Bird; Administrative Assistant, Linden Godlove 
 

Guests:   None Present 

 

Upon discussion, a motion was made by Sandy Edwards, seconded by Joan Luksik , TO APPROVE 

THE ORDER OF ITEMS FOR THE SPECIAL AGENDA. 
A vote was taken for approval of the motion. 
Ayes: Deska, Edwards, Lindstrom, and Luksik 
Nays: None 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: 
None present. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
No discussion at this time. 
 

NEW BUSINESS:  

4a Library Investment Review 
Schwartz & Co. provided an overview of the Library’s investments. Matt Whitty presented up to date 
information on the Library’s investments. The Trustees present agreed to continue the laddering of 
treasuries into 2019.   
 

4b Budget Review – Preliminary FY 2019/2020 Budget FY 2019-2020 Public Budget Hearing 
Director Mueller gave an overview of the FY 2019/2020 Budget. The FY 2018-2019 budget does not 
have any proposed amendments at this time. She reviewed the General Fund , the Gift Fund, and 
the capital improvements programs. Carol expressed thanks to the Department Heads and to 
Finance Coordinator Sandi Bird and Assistant Director Tera Moon for their contributions to prepare 
this detailed budget. 

 

4c Protecting Local Government Retirement and Benefits Act – PA 202 

6a 



There has been some recent legislation regarding the Library’s pension and Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) obligations. PA 202 was signed into law in 2017 for the purpose of providing state 
oversight of local government retirement systems (pension and healthcare). A local unit of 
government, such as this Library, is now required to annually report the funding status of their 
pension and OPEB (retiree healthcare) plans. 
 
The Library’s pension liability is determined to be fully funded by the State of Michigan. However, 
while the Library does set aside 100% of its OPEB liability in the Assigned Fund Balance 
classification of the Library’s adopted budget, the Library’s OPEB liability is not considered to be fully 
funded by the State because the funds are not set aside in a qualified trust account (per GASB 
standards). No recommendation is being made regarding a change in the Library’s OPEB funding 
method. PA 202 and GASB standards generally recommend funding through a qualified trust, but do 
not require it at this time. However, the Library is required to submit a corrective action plan 
approved by the Library Board at this time indicating how OPEB obligations will be funded now and 
into the future. This corrective action plan and signed Board resolution will indicate that the 
Bloomfield Township Public Library Board of Trustees is a good steward of the Library’s resources. 
The Library’s attorney worked with us to develop the corrective action plan and resolution. The 
Trustees unanimously supported the Library’s corrective action plan and signed the resolution 
stating so. 

 
 

4d Proposed 2019 Calendar 
 
Director Mueller reviewed the closings for the 2019/2020 Fiscal Year Calendar. The same closings 
as the Library had in 2018 are proposed. 
 
The proposed 2019 calendar includes eleven total days closed to the public and two early closings. 
The two evenings the Library closes early in 2019 are Thanksgiving Eve on Wednesday, November 
27 and on New Year’s Eve on Tuesday, December 31 in 2019.  The Library closes at 5:30 p.m. on 
these two days.   
 

OTHER: 
 
The upcoming August 21 board meeting was discussed, where the Myers scholarship will be 
presented at 6:30 p.m., the public budget hearing, commencing at 7 p.m. and the regular Library 
Board meeting to follow. 
 
There was discussion of moving the meeting of September because there are challenges making 
quorum. Monday, September 17 at 7 p.m. is the proposed date for this meeting.  
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 12:13 p.m. 
        Submitted By: 
 

                                                                                     
 
        Tom Deska, Secretary 



 

 

7a 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

Cash Disbursements Comments 
  

August 2018 
 
New Vendors:  
 
AGM/Approved Gas Masks is a new vendor for emergency supplies. 
 
Demco Software is a new vendor for library software. 
 
Image 360is a new vendor for a library logo vector file. 
 
The Social Express is a new vendor for a library online resource . 
 
 
General Fund Advance 
 

 Check #18834 payable to Bloomfield Township in the amount of $4,448.57 is 
payment for the Library’s water and sewer usage from 5/23 – 6/19/2018. 
 

 Check #18838 payable to Metronet Library Consortium in the amount of $596.31 
is payment for ebooks and Gale resources. 

 

 Check #18860 payable to Bloomfield Township in the amount of $5,988.08 is 
payment for the Library’s water and sewer usage from  6/19 – 7/23/2018. 
 

 
 
General Fund 
 

 Check #18868 payable to Bloomfield Township in the amount of $722,531.16 is 
payment for five payrolls, including FICA, HRA contributions, pension, etc. as 
usual and includes a charge of $3,000 for the Library’s portion of the OPEB 
actuarial report. 
 

 Check #18877 payable to the State of Michigan in the amount of $185.00 is 
payment for reference materials. 
 

 Check #18888 payable to L.J. Rolls Refrigeration Co., Inc. in the amount of 
$7,366.12 is payment for replacement of one of the Library’s HVAC 
compressors. 
 
 



 

 

 

 Check #18890 payable to Midwest Collaborative for Library Services in the 
amount of $250.00 is payment for the Library’s annual membership. 
 

 Check #18891 payable to Metronet Library Consortium in the amount of 
$4,500.00 is payment for the Library’s annual membership. 
 

  Check #18903 payable to The Library Network (TLN) in the amount of $164.00 
is payment for books. 
 

 

Gift Fund 
 

 Check #4937 payable to Bloomfield Township Public Library’s Staff 
Organization Committee (SOC) in the amount of $1,385.00 is payment for the 
Smith Challenge Grant payout to support the 2018 holiday party. 

 



Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

ADVANCE CHECKS:

18829 7/11/18 LOWE'S 106.01 195.10

18830 7/11/18 Martha McGee 106.01 233.63

18831 7/11/18 TERMINIX PROCESSING CTR. 106.01 123.00

18832 7/11/18 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP 106.01 842.76

18833 7/11/18 Karrie Yukon 106.01 76.28

18834 7/17/18 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 106.01 4,448.57

18835 7/17/18 Lauren Catoni 106.01 80.12

18836 7/17/18 XFINITY 106.01 156.51

18837 7/17/18 DTE ENERGY 106.01 21,003.42

18838 7/17/18 METRONET LIB. CONSORT. 106.01 596.31

18839 7/17/18 Marian Rafal 106.01 28.83

18840 7/17/18 THE SOCIAL EXPRESS 106.01 500.00

18841 7/17/18 VERIZON WIRELESS 106.01 754.92

18842 7/24/18 AMAZON.COM 106.01 3,446.83

18843 7/24/18 APPLIED IMAGING 106.01 584.71

18844 7/24/18 Joel Dion 106.01 263.90

18845 7/24/18 FLAGSTAR BANK 106.01 6,181.05

18846 7/24/18 Shayna Houghton 106.01 70.00

18847 7/24/18 POSEIDON LAWN SPRINKLERS 106.01 192.00

18848 7/24/18 PRINCIPAL LIFE INS CO-SBD GRANDE ISLAND 106.01 686.69

18849 7/24/18 VIGILANTE SECURITY 106.01 1,950.00

18850 7/31/18 Patricia Ballard 106.01 42.32

18851 7/31/18 PETTY CASH - BTPL 106.01 123.36

18852 7/31/18 VOID 106.01                       

18853 7/31/18 CONSUMERS ENERGY 106.01 3,820.68

18854 7/31/18 MIDEASTERN MICH. LIBRARY COOP. 106.01 50.00

18855 7/31/18 VOID 106.01                       

18856 8/1/18 AT&T 106.01 404.85

18857 8/1/18 AT&T 106.01 1,559.14

18858 8/1/18 PACIFIC TELEMANAGEMENT SERVICES 106.01 78.00

18859 8/1/18 Sing Fang Yuan 106.01 120.00

18860 8/8/18 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 106.01 5,988.08

18861 8/8/18 Edward Niemchak 106.01 106.00

18862 8/8/18 TERMINIX PROCESSING CTR. 106.01 123.00

Total 54,830.06

REGULAR CHECKS:

18863 8/9/18 ACE LAWN CARE & SNOW REMOVAL 106.01 5,129.33

18864 8/9/18 AMERICAN PEST CONTROL 106.01 1,588.00

18865 8/9/18 ASSA ABLOY ENTRANCE SOLUTIONS 106.01 719.58

18866 8/9/18 BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. 106.01 10,283.88

18867 8/9/18 BLACKSTONE AUDIO, INC. 106.01 413.73

18868 8/9/18 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 106.01 722,531.16

18869 8/9/18 BUSINESS COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC. 106.01 124.00

18870 8/9/18 CAR TRUCKING, INC. 106.01 199.50

18871 8/9/18 CAVENDISH SQUARE 106.01 125.70

18872 8/9/18 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 106.01 5,793.47

18873 8/9/18 CENGAGE LEARNING/GALE 106.01 632.08

18874 8/9/18 CENTRAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC. 106.01 238.00

18875 8/9/18 DEMCO, INC. 106.01 723.74

18876 8/9/18 DEMCO SOFTWARE 106.01 533.50

18877 8/9/18 STATE OF MICHIGAN 106.01 185.00

18878 8/9/18 DU ALL CLEANING, INC 106.01 5,760.00

18879 8/9/18 ELECTRONIC SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC. 106.01 4,740.00

18880 8/9/18 ENVISIONWARE, INC. 106.01 2,950.00

18881 8/9/18 FILM IDEAS, INC. 106.01 172.10

18882 8/9/18 GARETH STEVENS PUBLISHING 106.01 16.95

18883 8/9/18 GENPOWER PRODUCTS, INC. 106.01 820.00

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

CHECK REGISTERS

FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2018

General Fund

1



Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

CHECK REGISTERS

FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2018

18884 8/9/18 GOLDNER WALSH NURSERY, INC. 106.01 388.29

18885 8/9/18 GREY HOUSE PUBLISHING 106.01 134.10

18886 8/9/18 IMAGE 360 106.01 95.00

18887 8/9/18 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 106.01 700.69

18888 8/9/18 LJ ROLLS REFRIGERATION CO., INC 106.01 17,366.12

18889 8/9/18 LANGUAGE LIZARD, LLC 106.01 53.30

18890 8/9/18 MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE for LIB. SVCS 106.01 250.00

18891 8/9/18 METRONET LIB. CONSORT. 106.01 4,500.00

18892 8/9/18 MICH. GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSN. 106.01 125.00

18893 8/9/18 MICROMARKETING LLC 106.01 387.45

18894 8/9/18 MIDWEST TAPE 106.01 7,163.28

18895 8/9/18 NICHOLS/NETWORK SERVICES CO 106.01 1,431.50

18896 8/9/18 OMNIGRAPHICS 106.01 149.60

18897 8/9/18 OVERDRIVE 106.01 11,675.44

18898 8/9/18 PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE LLC 106.01 309.00

18899 8/9/18 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 106.01 1,195.88

18900 8/9/18 THE ROWMAN & LITTLEFIELD PUBLISHING GRP 106.01 280.02

18901 8/9/18 SECANT 106.01 720.00

18902 8/9/18 THE GREAT COURSES 106.01 11.95

18903 8/9/18 THE LIBRARY NETWORK 106.01 164.00

18904 8/9/18 UNIFY INC. 106.01 494.23

18905 8/9/18 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 106.01 438.55

18906 8/9/18 UNIVERSITY PRODUCTS, INC. 106.01 637.07

18907 8/9/18 WT COX INFORMATION SERVICES 106.01 18.02

Total 812,368.21

ADVANCE CHECKS:

4937 7/13/18 BLOOM. TWP. PUB. LIB. SOC. ORG. COMM. 102.03 1,385.00

4938 7/24/18 AMAZON.COM 102.03 646.21

4939 7/24/18 FLAGSTAR BANK 102.03 218.85

Total 2,250.06

REGULAR CHECKS:

4940 8/9/18 BAKER & TAYLOR 102.03 81.08

4941 8/9/18 DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY 102.03 55.22

4942 8/9/18 GOLDNER WALSH NURSERY, INC. 102.03 334.23

4943 8/9/18 LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS 102.03 229.91

4944 8/9/18 SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING 102.03 461.16

4945 8/9/18 SHOWCASES 102.03 1,058.40

4946 8/9/18 TFH USA 102.03 34.50

Total 2,254.50

Gift Fund

2



Bloomfield Township Public Library

 2018-2019 General Fund Budget   7b 

2018-2019 2018-2019 Four Months 33%

ADOPTED BUDGET AMENDED BUDGET REVENUE/EXPENSE REVENUE/ % OF

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT AS OF AS OF CURRENT EXPENSE BUDGET

NUMBER NAME MARCH 20, 2018 MARCH 20, 2018 MONTH YTD YTD VARIANCE

Revenues

410.01 Taxes $7,095,067 $7,095,067 ($1,165) ($2,964) -0.04% ($7,098,031)

420.01 Penal Fines $85,021 $85,021 $85,883 $85,883 101.01% $862

422.01 State Aid $26,860 $26,860 $0 $14,949 55.65% ($11,911)

430.01 Circulation Fines & Fees $100,000 $100,000 $7,638 $28,119 28.12% ($71,881)

Charges for Services $13,800 $13,800 $1,105 $5,661 41.02% ($8,139)

Investment earnings $79,000 $79,000 $3,170 $55,625 70.41% ($23,375)

Miscellaneous $13,497 $13,497 $2,192 $11,286 83.62% ($2,211)

Total Revenues $7,413,245 $7,413,245 $98,822 $198,560 2.68% ($7,214,685)

Expenditures

Personnel $4,119,114 $4,119,114 $418,052 $1,426,263 34.63% ($2,692,851)

Library Services $875,133 $875,133 $40,538 $246,894 28.21% ($628,239)

Facilities & Equipment $1,109,615 $1,109,615 $63,612 $365,083 32.90% ($744,532)

Other Operating Expenditures $3,022,865 $3,022,865 $50,488 $262,321 8.68% ($2,760,544)

Total Expenditures $9,126,727 $9,126,727 $572,691 $2,300,561 25.21% ($6,826,166)

Fund Balance - Beginning $12,889,674 $12,889,674 $12,889,674

Net revenue (expenditure) ($1,713,482) ($1,713,482) ($2,102,002)

Fund Balance - Ending $11,176,192 $11,176,192 $10,787,672

Amendments to the budget:

None

Changes made to the line items:

None

Fund Balance Designations

Nonspendable-Prepaid Expense $32,613 $32,613

$4,230,951 $4,230,951

$6,812,628 $6,812,628

$100,000 $100,000

PRESENTED:  AUGUST 21, 2018        FOR THE MONTH OF: JULY 2018

Committed Fund Balance (is 8-months of operational 

expenditures amount)

Assigned Fund Balance (is $453,182 the 3/31/18 

compensated absences accrual, plus $6,328,395 the 3/31/18 

OPEB obligation plus $31,051 for capital improvements)

Unassigned Fund Balance (is the unplanned 

emergency amount)



Bloomfield Township Public Library

 2018-2019 Gift Fund Budget

2018-2019 2018-2019

ADOPTED AMENDED REVENUE/

BUDGET BUDGET EXPENSE REVENUE/ % OF

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT AS OF AS OF CURRENT EXPENSE BUDGET

NUMBER NAME MAR 20, 2018 AUG 21, 2018 MONTH YTD YTD VARIANCE

Revenues

Gift Income $500 $25,539 $2,097 $25,539 100.00% $0

454.03 Investment Earnings $200 $200 $16 $63 31.40% ($137)

460.03 Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00% $0

Total Revenues $700 $25,739 $2,113 $25,602 99.47% ($137)

Expenditures

Library Services $56,425 $70,083 $2,168 $19,540 27.88% ($50,543)

Facilities & Equipment $30,202 $32,202 $279 $9,001 27.95% ($23,201)

Other Operating Expenditures $98,891 $108,272 $2,300 $7,636 7.05% ($100,636)

Total Expenditures $185,518 $210,557 $4,747 $36,177 17.18% ($174,380)

Fund Balance - Beginning $90,305 $90,305 $90,305

Reserved Fund Bal. $94,713 $94,713 $94,713

Net revenue (expenditures) ($184,818) ($184,818) ($10,575)

Fund Balance - Ending $200 $200 $174,443

PRESENTED: AUGUST 21, 2018       FOR THE MONTH OF: JULY 2018

Four Months 33%



7b

Annual

Fund Type Yield Date Amount on Hand

General Fund

5th 3rd Checking (Ecommerce) 0.00% 7/31/2018 $103,048.92

Flagstar Public Funds Savings 0.79% 7/31/2018 $242,057.72

Flagstar Premier Public Entities Checking 0.25% 7/31/2018 $97,409.25

RBC Capital Cash/Money Market 0.42% 7/31/2018 $223,085.08

RBC Capital - Investments 2.65% 7/31/2018 $10,937,878.94

Total General Fund $11,500,430.99

Please see General Fund budget for notes on how this amount is earmarked

Gift Fund Huntington Public Fund Business Interest Checking 0.15% 7/31/2018 $113,018.27

Huntington CD (Charnov gift) - matures 02/04/2019 0.45% 7/31/2018 $50,000.00

Fifth Third Bank Business Standard Checking 0.00% 7/31/2018 $5,944.97

Total Gift Fund $168,963.24

CFSEM

Updated 3/2018

Jeanette P. Myers Memorial Scholarship Fund 12/31/2017 $15,231.00

Yvonne T. Atkinson Fund 12/31/2017 $30,453.00

Lawrence Smith and Isabel Francis Smith Challenge Grant Fund 12/31/2017 $34,092.42

BTPL Endowment Fund 12/31/2017 $35,593.58

Fair Radom Garden Endowment Fund 12/31/2017 $15,511.00

BTPL Director's Legacy Fund 12/31/2017 $16,333.00

Total CFSEM holdings $147,214.00

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Asset Allocation Summary

July 2018

The following endowment funds are administerd by the Community Foundation for Southeast 

Michigan (CFSEM). CFSEM maintains unilateral variance power and legal ownership of the 

endowment funds, and therefore, principal is not available to BTPL.  Earnings are available for 

distribution to the Library for its operations at the discretion of CFSEM.



  7b

   

Month

2017/2018 

Fiscal Year

2018/2019 

Fiscal Year Difference

  

APR $9,449.79 $6,256.90 ($3,192.89)

MAY $7,559.45 $7,103.51 ($455.94)

JUN $9,866.26 $7,120.68 ($2,745.58)

JUL $7,426.47 $7,638.21 $211.74

AUG $9,421.94 ($9,421.94)

SEP $7,488.29 ($7,488.29)

OCT $6,607.58 ($6,607.58)

NOV $7,444.84 ($7,444.84)

DEC $7,059.80 ($7,059.80)

JAN $8,097.85 ($8,097.85)

FEB $6,896.75 ($6,896.75)

MAR $6,549.10 ($6,549.10)

YTD Difference

TOTAL $93,868.12 $28,119.30 ($65,748.82)

FINES AND FEES - TWO-YEAR COMPARISON

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

$14,000.00

$16,000.00

$18,000.00

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

A
m

o
u

n
t 

Months 

Fines and Fees 
Two-Year Comparison 

2017/2018
Fiscal Year

2018/2019
Fiscal Year



 7b   

Month

2017/2018    

Revenue

2018/2019    

Revenue Difference

2017/2018 

Usage

2018/2019 

Usage Month

APR $1,345.50 $1,380.00 $34.50 33 38 APR

MAY $1,074.00 $1,530.00 $456.00 27 46 MAY

JUN $1,281.00 $1,360.00 $79.00 28 32 JUN

JUL $1,070.00 $1,100.00 $30.00 19 17 JUL

AUG $1,570.00 ($1,570.00) 19 AUG

SEP $1,833.00 ($1,833.00) 37 SEP

OCT $970.00 ($970.00) 35 OCT

NOV $2,160.00 ($2,160.00) 44 NOV

DEC $800.00 ($800.00) 14 DEC

JAN $800.00 ($800.00) 34 JAN

FEB $1,480.00 ($1,480.00) 18 FEB

MAR $2,110.00 ($2,110.00) 44 MAR

YTD Difference

TOTAL $16,493.50 $5,370.00 ($11,123.50) 352 133

ROOM RENTAL - TWO-YEAR COMPARISON

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

A
m

o
u

n
t 

Months 

Room Rental Revenue 

2017/2018
Revenue

2018/2019
Revenue

0

10

20

30

40

50

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

R
e

n
ta

ls
 

Months 

Room Rental Usage 

2017/2018
Usage

2018/2019
Usage



7c

Building Area = 101,023 Sq ft.

TOTAL

2017/2018 2018/2019 Difference KWH COST/KWH KWH/HR KWH/SQ FT COST/HR COST/SQ FT.

Month (24 x no.days per 

month)

101,023 (24 x no. days per 

month)

101,023

APR $16,181.75 $19,326.66 $3,144.91 227,710 $0.08 316.26 2.25 $26.84 $0.19

MAY $17,048.76 $17,765.47 $716.71 189,770 $0.09 255.07 1.88 $23.88 $0.18

JUN $18,251.58 $22,441.79 $4,190.21 256,550 $0.09 356.32 2.54 $31.17 $0.22

JUL $20,183.10 $21,003.42 $820.32 237,370 $0.09 319.05 2.35 $28.23 $0.21

AUG $18,042.04 ($18,042.04) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SEP $17,640.48 ($17,640.48) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

OCT $16,784.00 ($16,784.00) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

NOV $14,899.46 ($14,899.46) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DEC $14,103.39 ($14,103.39) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

JAN $14,243.92 ($14,243.92) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

FEB $15,178.78 ($15,178.78) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MAR $16,912.49 ($16,912.49) #DIV/0! 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00

YTD Difference

TOTAL $199,469.75 $80,537.34 ($118,932.41)

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Electricity Analysis

TWO YEAR COST COMPARISON CURRENT YEAR OPERATION

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

K
W

/S
q

 F
t 

Month 

Two Year Operation Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

$35,000.00

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

In
v
o

ic
e
 t

o
ta

l 

Month 

Two Year Cost Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

8/9/2018



7c

    Building Area = 101,023

      1 Cu. Ft.  = 1000 BTU

     

2017/2018 2018/2019 Difference MCF COST/MCF HOURS MCF/HR MCF/SqFt $/HR $/SqFt

Month (24 x no.days 

per month)

APR $4,929.25 $4,735.91 ($193.34) 890.7 $5.32 720 1.24 0.009 6.58 0.046

MAY $4,411.34 $4,527.01 $115.67 849.6 $5.33 744 1.14 0.008 6.08 0.044

JUN $3,842.61 $4,270.19 $427.58 802.7 $5.32 720 1.11 0.008 5.93 0.042

JUL $4,009.40 $3,820.68 ($188.72) 721.7 $5.29 744 0.97 0.007 5.14 0.037

AUG $3,514.92 ($3,514.92) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

SEP $4,181.90 ($4,181.90) #DIV/0! 720 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

OCT $3,793.70 ($3,793.70) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

NOV $3,552.74 ($3,552.74) #DIV/0! 720 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

DEC $4,656.43 ($4,656.43) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

JAN $6,369.63 ($6,369.63) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

FEB $4,551.76 ($4,551.76) #DIV/0! 696 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

MAR $5,313.49 ($5,313.49) #DIV/0! 744 0.00 0.000 0.00 0.000

YTD Difference

TOTAL $53,127.17 $17,353.79 ($35,773.38)

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Natural Gas Analysis

TWO YEAR COST COMPARISON OPERATION

0

0.003

0.006

0.009

0.012

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

M
C

F
/S

q
F

t 

Month 

Two Year Operation Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

$7,000.00

$8,000.00

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

In
v
o

ic
e
 t

o
ta

l 

Month 

Two Year Cost Comparison 

2017/2018

2018/2019

8/9/2018



 
7c

Month

2017/18 

Fiscal Year 

Cost

2018/19 

Fiscal Year 

Cost Difference

2017/18 

Fiscal Year 

Usage

2018/19 

Fiscal Year 

Usage Difference

  

APR $803.09 $1,070.69 $267.60 59 68 9

MAY $3,440.06 $1,159.66 ($2,280.40) 365 90 (275)

JUN $4,772.76 $4,448.57 ($324.19) 528 429 (99)

JUL $7,363.60 $5,988.08 ($1,375.52) 829 584 (245)

AUG $6,010.12 ($6,010.12) 670 (670)

SEP $5,554.34 ($5,554.34) 617 (617)

OCT $2,046.74 ($2,046.74) 209 (209)

NOV $540.76 ($540.76) 34 (34)

DEC $552.89 ($552.89) 35 (35)

JAN $1,802.28 ($1,802.28) 138 (138)

FEB $783.36 ($783.36) 54 (54)

MAR $965.31 ($965.31) 69 (69)

YTD Difference YTD Difference

TOTAL $34,635.31 $12,667.00 ($21,968.31) 3,607 1,171 (2,436)

Bloomfield Township Public Library

Water Analysis

$0.00

$1,500.00

$3,000.00

$4,500.00

$6,000.00

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

In
v
o

ic
e

 t
o

ta
l 

Months 

Two-Year Cost Comparison 

2017/18
Fiscal Year
Cost

2018/19
Fiscal Year
Cost

0

200

400

600

800

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

U
s
a

g
e

 t
o

ta
l 

in
 t

h
o
u
s
a
n
d
's

 
o
f 

g
a
llo

n
s
 

Months 

Two-Year Usage Comparison 

2017/18
Fiscal Year
Usage

2018/19
Fiscal Year
Usage



 

8b 
BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MONTHLY DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

August, 2018 

 
 
In honor of the Bloomfield Township Public Library Board of Trustees, our Staff Organization 
Committee (SOC) recently made a donation of $113.00 to the Library Endowment Fund. In this 
way, Library staff wishes to thank you for all that you do to make this Library so great.   
 
 
On August 8, 2018, through its consultant, The Library released a request for proposals for a 
new telephone system.  Our current telephone system has reached the end of its life and 
needs to be replaced.  Attached, for your information, is a copy of the request for proposals.  
The deadline for proposals is Thursday, September 13, 2018.   A recommendation for the 
award of this bid will be forthcoming for your review at the October 16 Library Board meeting. 
 
 
The Library’s annual fire alarm inspection was held on July 18, 2018.  Everything is in perfect 
order.  Our Facilities Department Head Joel Dion shared this information with Bloomfield 
Township Fire Department inspectors.  Joel was commended for his “forward approach to 
safety”.    I am grateful that Joel does maintain and follow a regular schedule of proactive work 
on all library systems. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Carol Mueller 
Director 



BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

FIVE YEAR CIRCULATION

8/11/2018

2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019

APRIL 65,851 63,783 59,090 63,413 57,829

MAY 61,347 58,740 57,125 59,745 53,493

JUNE 67,987 68,518 63,243 64,319 59,101

JULY 77,485 75,304 71,265 70,006 66,539

AUGUST 69,931 73,868 69,676 70,391

SEPTEMBER 62,536 60,292 58,100 56,939

OCTOBER 61,177 61,960 58,678 56,291

NOVEMBER 62,815 59,157 54,362 54,703

DECEMBER 61,726 59,871 58,628 52,859

JANUARY 63,404 62,491 63,455 58,510

FEBRUARY 60,140 60,612 57,856 54,554

MARCH    66,845 64,896 66,071 62,452

TOTAL 781,244 769,492 737,549 724,182 236,962

50,000

55,000

60,000

65,000

70,000

75,000

80,000

85,000

90,000

95,000

100,000

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s
 i
n

 C
ir

c
u

la
ti

o
n

 

Months 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON 
CIRCULATION STATISTICS  

2014/2015

2015/2016

2016/2017

2017/2018

2018/2019



JULY 2018 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
 8/14/2018

2017 2018
COLLECTION

Book Collection: 273,169 260,452
Media Collection: 61,777 61,510
Total e-books: 31,627 14,943
   Overdrive 9,039 10,324
   EBSCOhost 19,196 0
Total downloadable audiobooks: 5,203 5,707
Materials Total: 371,776 342,612

CIRCULATION

Circulation Total: 70,006 66,539
Bloomfield Township Circulation: 65,590 66,413
Virtual Circulation Total 9,566 10,389

Circulation of Youth materials: 25,934 24,208
Circulation of Media: 21,009 19,178
Circulation of Cranbrook passes: 350 329
Self-checkout machine use: 28,554 40.8% 26,403 39.7%
Library by Mail: 49 26 patrons 61 34 patrons

BUILDING & EQUIPMENT USAGE

Door Count: 19,844 * 18,764 *
Gate Count: 28,186 27,441
Meeting rooms by public: 19 17
Meeting rooms by staff: 65 64

VIRTUAL USE

Home page hits: 32,173 31,864
e-book access: 2,534 3,109
   Overdrive 2,513 3,109
   EBSCOhost 21 0
Audiobook access:  (Overdrive) 1,366 1,621
Freegal music download access: 1,070 899
Freegal music streaming: 2,345 2,081

Magazine download access: 775 570
Hoopla access: 1,476 2,109
Tutor.com sessions: 5 2

Library Computer Use

     Resident Use 1,651 1,453
     Guest Use 729 593

*Library closed July 4 for Independence Day



JULY 2018 BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
 8/14/2018

2017 2018
OUTREACH & PROGRAMS

New Patrons and Accounts

Township: 213 238
Cranbrook: 5 5
Total new patrons: 294 296

Adult Program Attendance

Staff-led: 16 events 144 attended  11 events 129 attended
Speaker-led: 7 events 175 attended 4 events 202 attended
Book clubs: 6 events 64 attended 6 events 38 attended
Tours/visits on-site: 1 event 5 attended 1 event 12 attended
Tours/visits off-site: 3 events 14 attended 5 events 47 attended

Systems Program Attendance

Staff-led: 4 events 22 attended 5 events 57 attended

Teen Program Attendance

Staff-led: 3 events 44 attended 3 events 6 attended

Youth Program Attendance

Staff-led: 14 events 479 attended 13 events 545 attended
Speaker-led: 2 events 106 attended 5 events 246 attended
Tours/visits on-site: 2 events 23 attended 0 0
Tours/visits off-site: 0 0 1 event 11 attended
TOTAL: 58 events 1,076 attended 54 events 1,293 attended

Volunteers: 31 people 263.50 hours 32 people 239.75 hours

Shop: 9 105.5 Shop: 10 100.75

Court: 0 0 Court: 2 22.75

Students: 12 91 Students: 13 62.5

Dept. Vol: 10 67 Dept. Vol: 7 53.75

Patron Remarks

Patron Comments: 7 9

Ask BTPL: 3 4
Ask Us: 40 17

DISPLAYS

Lobby Ethnic & cultural artifacts from International Institute of Metropolitan Detroit

Media Adult AV: Musicals, Shark Week, American Stories/Film (4th of July)

Youth AV: Shark Week, "But Wait, There's More", Libraries Rock

Local History One World, Many Stories: Australia



 8c 
MINUTES OF THE BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 

Bloomfield Township Public Library 
Oakland County, Michigan 

Thursday, August 2, 2018, 11 a.m. 
 

Present: Trustees: Tom Deska, Sandy Edwards, Grant Gerhart, Eli Greenbaum, Judy Lindstrom, 
Joan Luksik  

 
Administration: Library Director, Carol Mueller; Administrative Assistant Linden Godlove; Adult Services 

Librarian, Karrie Yukon; Youth Services Department Head Marian Rafal 
 
 
Old Business: 
Photo Contest 2019 Recap - Saturday, April 13, 2019 – 2-4 p.m. (the end of National Library Week) 

 Reviewed basics: suggested theme, “In Motion,” still appeals to the committee. 
 
 

Read-a-Thon Saturday, September 8, 2018 (International Literacy Day) 

 For PR, the Read-a Thon has been featured in the newsletter. The need for readers is being promoted 
in-house and in the departments. The Library is on track to promote the program. The deadline for 
volunteer readers is August 15, but volunteer readers will still be accepted after this. 

 The Read-a-Thon will start at 10 a.m. that day and all logistics were confirmed.  

 Joan Luksik and Grant Gerhart will back up Tom Deska for breaks. There will be refreshments in the 
Board Room. The Read-a-Thon will not be taped this time. 

 Since the most recent meeting, the number of volunteer readers has doubled to 8 readers in a range of 
ages. New Administration Clerk Laura Moore has connections to the Roeper school forensics students 
and suggests volunteers could come from there. Our need for readers will be shared at the next 
Friends’ meeting. There might be board members and staff serving as readers.   

 Volunteer readers will receive a certificate with their photo on it. There will also be a one-line bio for 
each reader shared by the emcee. 

 The layout was discussed, with a preference expressed for fewer chairs than the 2016 read-a-thon. 

 There will be a poster with the sponsors on it. Sponsors of a certain level will also be announced 
periodically.  
 

One World, Many Stories-An International Night at the Library- October 13, 2018 (7-10 p.m.) 
Subcommittee reports were reviewed. Décor and library layouts were reviewed. The Library is selling 
tickets in advance at $50 and $75 at the door. Programs and tickets are being worked on in 
Administration. At this time, we have ten sponsorships, one of which is from Arbor Oakland, who 
provided $500 of in kind printing. Sponsor Midwest Tape, who donated $500, will not be attending and 
will return 4 tickets, for which there might be a staff drawing. The Library has received $7,000 in 
sponsorship so far, without having made any follow-up calls. The goal is to sell 150 tickets.  Linden 
Godlove gave an updated review on the décor. Two Unique has been confirmed as our caterer, and 
Carolyn Berry will be approached for a preview of the space. Desserts and coffee will be in the Local 
History section. There are no updates on the desired wine donation. Joan Luksik and Judy Lindstrom 
will assist the caterers that evening. Other volunteers are being approached for attending to the bar. 
Goldner Walsh will be approached to create a flower arrangement. The liquor license has been 
submitted to the state. The Township has approved their portion and has been great and assisting in 
the process. Music and entertainment seems to be all wrapped up. Entertainers have all been paid a 
50% deposit. Tom Deska, Eli Greenbaum, and Grant Gerhart will host the entertainers that evening and 
the Board Room will serve as the green room. Marian Rafal will host the caricaturist. The invitations 



and mailing list were reviewed. Electronic invitations will be sent as well. The website is now live for 
sponsorship and tickets. Four baskets will be donated for prize drawings, the Library Board, the 
Lindstrom family, Sandy Edwards, and the Library. Details of how one will win the baskets are to be 
determined. 

 
Library Wide One World/Many Stories spring/summer program series: 

Many thanks to our Friends, there will be “Pint-Sized Polka” tonight at 7 p.m. Ninety people attended 
the “Joey Leone: Shades of America” Blues concert on Friday night. The concerts and performances 
have been wonderful and a variety of people have attended each performance. “’Uke’ Can Do It” was 
also quite popular. There are a few youth programs left for summer reading, with one being part of 
“One World, Many Stories.”  

 
New Business: 
No new business. 
 
Other: 
Nothing to report. 
 
Next meeting:   

 Thursday, August 30, 2018 at 11 a.m. 



  11a 
 

 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Carol Mueller, Library Director 
 
DATE: August 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Library Renovations Bid Award 
 
At long last, I feel that our lower level flooding issue has been substantially resolved.  
After dealing with so much water coming in to the lower level over the years, it is time to 
replace flooring, remove peeling wall covering and freshen up these areas with new 
flooring and paint.  In addition, the two restrooms in the lower level as well as the two 
heavily used restrooms near the Community Room are in need of renovations.  Quinn 
Evans Architects (QEA) was asked to recommend new materials for these spaces and 
issue a request for proposals for the renovations. 
 
On July 19, 2018, a request for proposals for Library renovations was released.  A 
mandatory walk-through was held at the Library and conducted by QEA  on Wednesday, 
July 25, 2018.  This walk-through was attended by three companies.   The deadline for 
bids was Wednesday, August 1, 2018 at which time three proposals were received.  AM 
Higley, O’Neal Construction Inc. and Frank Rewold and Son, Inc. submitted proposals to 
QEA for our Library renovations. 
 
QEA has carefully reviewed all three proposals received.  Their analysis and 
recommendation are attached for your review and consideration.  Geraldine Drake and 
Jim Mumby from QEA will be present at the August 21 Library Board meeting to answer 
any questions you may have about the proposals received and their recommendation. 
 
Thank you for your review and consideration of the recommendation. 
 
If you agree with the proposed bid award recommendation, the following action is 
needed: 
 
 
ACTION NEEDED:  I move to award the Library Renovations bid to Frank Rewold and 
Son, Inc., 333 E 2nd Street, Rochester, Michigan, 48307. 
 
 



 

 

14 August, 2018 

 

Carol Mueller, Library Director 

Bloomfield Township Public Library 

1099 Lone Pine Road 

Bloomfield Township, MI 48302 

 

RE: BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY BID PACKAGE FOR BATHROOM AND 
LOWER LEVEL RENOVATIONS 

RECOMMENDATION OF BID AWARD 

 

 

Dear Ms. Mueller: 

On July 19, 2018, a request for proposals for the bathroom and lower level renovations. This 
request was released through Quinn Evans Architects Newforma system to four companies in 
metro Detroit.  

A mandatory walk-through for interested proposers was held on Wednesday, July 25, 2018. 
Representatives from three contractor companies and their designated sub-contractors attended 
the walk-through: O’Neal Construction, AM Higley Construction and Rewold Construction. The 
deadline for proposals was Wednesday, August 1, 2018 at 3:00 PM to the offices of Quinn Evans 
Architects in Ann Arbor, MI. QEA opened the bids and reviewed them for accuracy and meeting the 
requirements of the bid submission. All proposals received were carefully reviewed by Geraldine 
Drake, James Mumby and Ann Dilcher. A copy of our proposal review is attached for your 
information. 

After reviewing the proposals, O’Neal Construction was eliminated due to high bid submission 
costs, compared to the other bidders. AM Higley offered a competitive bid, however, given that 
Higley is relatively new to the Detroit marketplace, it was determined this project would not be a 
good fit for their services.  

Following our analysis of all the proposals and discussing the strong relationship and trust that the 
library has in Rewold, our recommendation is to award the library bathroom and lower level 
renovations to Rewold for $248,740.00 total costs. 

Cordially, 

Quinn Evans Architects 

 
James Mumby, AIA, LEED AP   Geraldine Drake, NCIDQ, LEED Green Associate 

Principal     Associate 

 

 



BTPL Bid Package Analysis

8/9/2018

FIRM NAME

ATTEND 
WALK 
THROUGH PROPOSAL

FIRM INFORMATION + 
EXPERIENCE INSURANCE PROPOSAL NOTES FEE

O'Neal Construction Yes Met requirements

Long standing relationship with 
QEA meeting high performance 
expectation and high quality Met requirements None $290,000

AM Higley Yes Met requirements 

New comer to Detroit 
marketplace, relationship with the 
Regional Manager from high 
performance work performed 
Beaumont Health See Notes

Includes Plumbing + Permit Costs only (verified with BTBD no plan 
review or permits required) Builder's Risk Insurance not included 
(assumed to be provided by Owner), Excludes Payment and 
Performance Bonds. Excludes any abatement or mold remediation 
work if encountered during demolition phase. $238,240

Rewold and Son Yes Met requirments

Long standing relationship with 
BTPL and QEA meeting high 
performance expectation and 
high quality. High comfort level 
with BTPL in allowing in space 
during off-hours. See Notes

Includes full-time supervision. Assumes circuits are existing for all 
hand dryers and new ones are simply being swapped. Assumes 
existing blocking will be utilized and walls will not be opened and new 
blocking added. Per G001, the project is exempt from plan revew/bldg 
permits. No permit costs are included. Includes Performance and 
Labor Bond. Basis of design for changing station deis not match 
specifications, price based on A-101 product. No model number 
included for paper towel dispenser. Price based on #59466A. 
Excludes: Builders Risk, Asbestos/Hazardous Material 
Testing/Abatement, FFE, Design Fees, Moving Furniture, Moving 
Technology, Existing Base Touch up. $248,740



  11b 
 

 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Carol Mueller, Library Director 
 
DATE: August 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed 2019 Calendar 
 
The proposed 2019 calendar includes eleven total days closed to the public and two early 
closings. The two evenings the Library closes early in 2019 are Thanksgiving Eve on 
Wednesday, November 27 and on New Year’s Eve on Tuesday, December 31 in 2019.  
The Library closes at 5:30pm on these two days.   
 
The proposed 2019 calendar is shown in the traditional January through December 
calendar format. However, as the Library’s fiscal year begins April 1 and ends March 31, 
the first three months of the 2020 calendar year are included to show the complete April 1 
– March 31 2019/2020 fiscal year.  
 
Please review the attached proposed 2019 calendar for the 2019/2020 fiscal year. I also 
have attached the approved 2018 calendar for the 2018/2019 fiscal year for your 
comparison.   
 
Thank you for your review and consideration of this proposal. 
 
If you agree with the proposed 2019 Library calendar, the following action is needed: 
 
 
ACTION NEEDED:  I move to approve the proposed 2019 Library calendar of Holidays 
and Closings as presented. 
 
 



Bloomfield Township Public Library  
Proposed 2019 Calendar 

 
L I BRARY CALENDAR 20 19  HOLI DAYS AND CLOSI NGS 

 

January 1  CLOSED  Tuesday  *New Year’s Day  
January 21  open   Monday  Martin Luther King Day Observance 
February 18  open   Monday  President’s Day  
April 19  open   Friday   *Good Friday + 
April 20  open   Saturday  Easter Weekend  
April 20  open   Saturday  Passover 
April 21  CLOSED  Sunday  Easter 
May 3   CLOSED  Friday   *Staff Development Day + 
May 6   open   Monday  Ramadan starts 
May 25  open   Saturday  Memorial Day Weekend 
May 26  CLOSED  Sunday  Memorial Day Weekend 
May 27  CLOSED  Monday  *Memorial Day Observance 
July 4   CLOSED  Thursday  *Independence Day 
August 31  open   Saturday  Labor Day Weekend 
September 1  CLOSED  Sunday  Labor Day Weekend   
September 2  CLOSED  Monday  *Labor Day 
September 30  open   Tuesday  Rosh Hashanah 
October 9  open   Wednesday  Yom Kippur 
October 14  open   Monday  Columbus Day Observance 
November 11  open   Monday  Veterans Day 
November 27             Close at 5:30p.m.  Wednesday  Thanksgiving Eve 
November 28   CLOSED  Thursday  *Thanksgiving Day 
December 23  open   Monday  Hanukkah 
December 24  CLOSED  Tuesday  *Christmas Eve 
December 25  CLOSED  Wednesday  *Christmas Day 
December 31  Close at 5:30p.m. Tuesday  New Year’s Eve 
 

                                                                           2020 
January 1  CLOSED  Wednesday  *New Year’s Day 
January 20  open   Monday  Martin Luther King Day 
February 17  open   Monday  President’s Day 
 

 
+Floating holidays:  Good Friday and Staff Development Day should be scheduled within the pay period 
of their occurrence or after their occurrence prior to the end of the fiscal year as approved by the 
supervisor. Staff Development Day is awarded if employee attends the full day of Staff Development Day 
and employee is eligible for holidays.    
 
*Library-approved paid holidays 
 
Daylight Savings Time begins: Sunday, March 10, 2019 
Daylight Savings Time ends: Sunday, November 3, 2019        
                
                  



Bloomfield Township Public Library  
Approved 2018 Calendar 

 
L I BRARY CALENDAR 20 18  HOLI DAY AND CLO SING S  

 

 
January 1  CLOSED  Monday  *New Year’s Day  
January 15  open   Monday  Martin Luther King Day Observance 
February 19  open   Monday  President’s Day  
March 30  open   Friday   *Good Friday + 
March 31  open   Saturday  Easter Weekend  
March 31  open   Saturday  Passover 
April 1   CLOSED  Sunday  Easter 
May 4   CLOSED  Friday   *Staff Development Day + 
May 26  open   Saturday  Memorial Day Weekend 
May 27  CLOSED  Sunday  Memorial Day Weekend 
May 28  CLOSED  Monday  *Memorial Day Observance 
July 4   CLOSED  Wednesday  *Independence Day 
September 1  open   Saturday  Labor Day Weekend 
September 2  CLOSED  Sunday  Labor Day Weekend   
September 3  CLOSED  Monday  *Labor Day 
September 10  open   Monday  Rosh Hashanah 
September 19  open   Wednesday  Yom Kippur 
October 8  open   Monday  Columbus Day Observance 
November 11  open   Sunday  Veterans Day 
November 21             Close at 5:30p.m.  Wednesday  Thanksgiving Eve 
November 22  CLOSED  Thursday  *Thanksgiving Day 
December 3  open   Monday  Hanukkah 
December 24  CLOSED  Monday  *Christmas Eve 
December 25  CLOSED  Tuesday  *Christmas Day 
December 31  Close at 5:30p.m. Monday  New Year’s Eve 
 

                                                                           2019 
January 1  CLOSED  Tuesday  *New Year’s Day 
January 21  open   Monday  Martin Luther King Day 
February 18  open   Monday  President’s Day 
 

 
+Floating holidays:  Good Friday and Staff Development Day should be scheduled within the 
pay period of their occurrence or after their occurrence prior to the end of the fiscal year as 
approved by the supervisor. Staff Development Day is awarded if employee attends the full day 
of Staff Development Day and employee is eligible for holidays.    
 
*Library-approved paid holidays 
 
Daylight Savings Time begins: Sunday, March 11, 2018 
Daylight Savings Time ends: Sunday, November 4, 2018 
              
                            



 

13 
 
 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 

  MOTION TO APPROVE ANY ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

I move to approve the items previously removed from the consent agenda for discussion. 
 
 
 
 
 





















































The Bloomfield Township Public Library champions the power of words to spark discovery and imagination. 

 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Trustees  
 
FROM: Tera Moon 
 
DATE:  August 13 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Strategic Plan Update 
 
At the regular monthly meeting of the Library Board of Trustees on May 15, 2018, I provided a progress 
update on our strategic plan. We are at the halfway point in the strategic plan’s timeline. We have 
achieved many accomplishments and are about to begin a space needs assessment project that will 
impact every aspect of the Library’s service. The Board asked to schedule a special session for a 
discussion on our strategic plan and what comes next once the end of the plan’s timeline is reached. 
Using a third-party facilitator was suggested. We look forward to an inspiring discussion about the 
library’s future.   
 
1. Marketing  

This group continues to meet and discuss ideas and tactics for marketing the Library and its 
services. 
 

2. Tours 
Another public tour is planned for September 19, 2018 at 1:00 p.m. 
 

3. Staff Awareness 
The weekly Staff Huddles that this team recommended have been well-received by staff.  This 
team also inspired regular meetings of staff who are assigned to be Seniors-in-Charge.   
 

4. Programming  
Having met the goal of creating a new newsletter, this team has been reviewing the Library’s 
approach to programming.  Recently the team discussed the registration process across the 
three public service departments that provide programs. 

 
These investments will move us toward accomplishing our four strategic goals: 

 Expand awareness, use, and support of the Library and its services. 

 Further develop the highest level of customer service for Bloomfield Township residents. 

 Increase use of and customer satisfaction with the Library's services and collections. 

 Provide an attractive, easy-to-use, and flexible facility and grounds that meet a variety of users’ 
needs. 



The Bloomfield Township Public Library champions the power of words to spark discovery and imagination. 

 
 

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Trustees  
 
FROM: Tera Moon 
 
DATE:  August 13, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Space Needs & Wayfinding Assessment Update 
 
 
Quinn Evans Architects (QEA) has been meeting with Library Administration to discuss phasing and 

budgeting of this project.  As you know, QEA is also assisting the Library with four other building 

projects – the lobby floor replacement, the lower level and restroom renovations, the Library roof and 

the Welcome Desk panel revision.  Due to the costs of these building projects and cost information 

regarding our Space Needs ideas, we will begin with Phase 1- moving Media - in spring, 2019.  Adult 

Services and Youth Services have been closely analyzing their collections to prepare for this move.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



September 2018 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY SUNDAY 

     1 2 

  

 

   Library Closed - Labor Day 
Weekend - will re-open 
Tuesday, September 4, 
9:30 a.m. 

Library Closed - Labor Day 
Weekend - will re-open 
Tuesday, September 4, 9:30 
a.m. 

3 4 

 

5 6 7 8 9 

Library Closed - Labor Day 
Weekend - will re-open 
Tuesday, September 4, 9:30 
a.m. 

10AM Knit 'n Stitch Circle 

3PM Policy Meeting 

 

12:15 PM Friends 

6PM  Introduction to Google 
Apps 

 

 

 

 

 
12PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

 

9:30AM – 3:30PM  

Friends of the Library 
Second Saturday  

10AM  A Wrinkle in Time by 
Madeleine L'Engle READ-
A-THON 

 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

11AM Adult /Teen Sensory 
Storytime 

4:30PM Google CS First 
Coding with Scratch  

7PM International Cookbook 
Club 

10AM Tinker Tales 

1PM Memoir Writers' Group 

6:30PM 'In Vino Veritas' 
Nonfiction Book Club 

Gale Courses Begin 

10AM Wee ALL Play 

4:30PM Google CS First 
Coding with Scratch  

6:30PM Writers' Rendezvous 

6:30PM Paperbacks & Snacks 

 

10AM  Mother Goose Club 

1PM Digital Download Help 

10AM Movers and Shakers 

12PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

 

11AM SENSEational Story 
Time 

 

17   Diaper Drive 

 

18 19 20 21   Diaper Drive 

 

22 23 

10AM Family Story Time 

1PM 30 Minute Lunchtime 
Book Club 

4:30PM Google CS First  

6:30 Book Worms 

7PM The Perfect Pint 

Diaper Drive 

10AM Tuesday Book Club 

10AM Tinker Tales 

6PM Intro to Powerpoint 

Diaper Drive 

10AM Wee ALL Play 

1PM  Mystery Book Club 

1PM Library Tour 

4:30PM Google CS First  

 

Diaper Drive 

10AM Mother Goose Club 

6PM Book Chat 

 

10AM Coffee &Conversation 

10AM Movers and Shakers 

111AM  Sensory-Friendly 
Movies for Adults and Teens 

2PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

 

Diaper Drive 

 

Diaper Drive 

 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

Diaper Drive  

4:30PM Google CS First 
Coding with Scratch  

6PM  Books in Bars at Rusty 
Bucket 

6:30PM My 1st Book Club 

Diaper Drive  

10AM Tinker Tales 

1PM Memoir Writers' Group 

2PM Free Music From Freegal 

7PM BTPL Board of Trustees 
Meeting 

 

Diaper Drive 

10AM Wee ALL Play 

4:30PM Google CS First 
Coding with Scratch  

6:30PM Writers' Rendezvous 

 

Diaper Drive 

10AM Eleanor's Book Club 

10AM Mother Goose Club 

6PM Intro to Scanning & Photo 
Editing 

6:30 Art Lab 

Diaper Drive 

10AM Movers and Shakers 

12PM English Language 
Conversation Hour 

 

Diaper Drive 

10AM Get Started on Your 
Family Genealogy 
Workshop 

2PM Powerpoint 2 

Diaper Drive 


	0 Reminder
	1 Board Packet Cover Page
	1b  Contents August 2018
	3 AGENDA August 21, 2018
	3 Motion No 2a- NF
	4 Motion No 2b-NF
	5 Motion 5 consent agenda
	6 2018.07.17_ Meeting-Minutes
	6a Special Board Mtg  minutes  8-9-2018
	7a Cash Disbursements  August 2018
	7a Check Disbursements
	7b1 General Fund Board Copy
	7b2 Gift Fund Board Copy
	7b3 Asset Allocation
	7b5 Fines-Fees Report
	7b5 Room Rent Report
	7c1 Utilities Electricity
	7c1 Utilities Gas
	7c1 Utilities Water
	8b DIRECTORS REPORT August 2018
	8b2 5 Yr Circ - July 2018
	8b2 July 2018 Activity Report
	8c 2018 08 02 Dev Com meeting minutes_
	11a Memo to Trustees re Library Renovations Bid Award
	11a1 2018 BTPL Recommendation to Board renovtions
	11a2 BTPL Bid Package Analysis renovations 2018
	11b Memo to Trustees re proposed 2019 calendar
	11b1_Proposed 2019 Holiday Calendar
	11b2_Approved 2018 Holiday Calendar
	13 Motion 13 removed items
	Unnumbered_1_VOIP RFP 8 2018
	Unnumbered 2 Memo Strategic Plan Update
	Unnumbered 3 Memo Space Needs & Wayfinding Assessment Update
	Unnumbered 4_Calendar



